LABOR AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE



AND

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO LOCAL UNION NO. 737, COUNCIL 65

PUBLIC WORKS UNION

2023-2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>	<u>Page No.</u>
ARTICLE I. PURPOSE	3
ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE III. PRODUCTIVITY	3
ARTICLE IV. UNION SECURITY	4
ARTICLE V. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE VI. EMPLOYER SECURITY	5
ARTICLE VII. DEFINITIONS	5
ARTICLE VIII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE IX. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	8
ARTICLE X. PROBATIONARY PERIODS	9
ARTICLE XI. HOURS OF WORK	10
ARTICLE XII. OVERTIME	11
ARTICLE XIII. CALLBACK	13
ARTICLE XIV. MEAL AND REST PERIODS	13
ARTICLE XV. HOLIDAYS	13
ARTICLE XVI. VACATIONS	14
ARTICLE XVII. LEAVES	15
ARTICLE XVIII. SICK LEAVE	15
ARTICLE XIX. EMERGENCY LEAVE	17
ARTICLE XX. INSURANCE	17
ARTICLE XXI. SENIORITY	19
ARTICLE XXII. JOB POSTING AND VACANCIES	20
ARTICLE XXIII. NON DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT AND AFFIRMAT ACTION PROGRAM	
ARTICLE XXIV. SAFETY	
ARTICLE XXV. TOOLS	

ARTICLE XXVI. WAIVER OF BARGAINING	ZZ
ARTICLE XXVII. SAVINGS CLAUSE	23
ARTICLE XXVIII. TUITION, TEXTBOOK, AND LICENSES	23
ARTICLE XXIX. UNION/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS	23
ARTICLE XXX. TRAINING/EDUCATION	24
ARTICLE XXXI. DURATION	24
ARTICLE XXXII. WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS	24
Appendix A –2023 Pay Amounts (3 Percent Increase effective 1/1/23)	
Appendix B – 2024 Pay Amounts (3 Percent Increase effective 1/1/24)	
Appendix C – Payment of Accrued Benefits (Severance) into Voluntary Employeenefit Association Account (VEBA)Account	oyee

Labor Agreement between the City of Red Wing and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local No. 737 2023-2024

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE

- 1.1 This Agreement, entered into by the City of Red Wing, hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER", and Local 737, Council 65, American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "UNION", has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the EMPLOYER and the UNION, the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences concerning the interpretation or application of this Agreement, and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work, and other conditions of employment.
- 1.2 This Agreement is pursuant to and in compliance with the Minnesota Public Employment Labor Relations Act of 1971, as amended, hereinafter referred to as the Act.

ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION

- 2.1 The EMPLOYER recognizes the UNION as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of establishing wages, hours and other conditions of employment for all employees in the City of Red Wing Department of Public Works who are employed for more than 14 (fourteen) hours per week and more than 67 (sixty-seven) work days per year excluding supervisory and confidential employees and students who work more than 100 working days in a calendar year and are under the age of 24 and are full-time students enrolled in a nonprofit or public educational institution prior to being hired by the EMPLOYER, and have indicated, either by application for employment or by being enrolled at an educational institution for the next academic year or term, an intention to continue as students during or after their temporary employment.
- 2.2 The EMPLOYER shall not enter into any agreement with employees coming under this jurisdiction, either individually or collectively, which conflicts with the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III. PRODUCTIVITY

3.1 The EMPLOYER and the UNION mutually recognize the need to maintain and improve productivity in the various operations of the City. To this end, the UNION will cooperate with the EMPLOYER in studies intended to measure and improve productivity. The UNION will also encourage its members and officers to make suggestions to the EMPLOYER that in the judgment of said members and officers would aid in improving productivity.

ARTICLE IV. UNION SECURITY

- 4.1 The EMPLOYER agrees to deduct union dues or fair share fee from the wages of employees who have authorized in writing such a deduction. The amount of the Union dues to be deducted shall be certified to the EMPLOYER by the Treasurer of the UNION, and the aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted with an itemized statement to the Treasurer by the tenth (10th) of the succeeding month, after such deductions are made.
- 4.2 The UNION shall indemnify and hold the EMPLOYER harmless against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments brought or issued against the EMPLOYER as a result of any action taken or not taken by the EMPLOYER under the provision of this Article.
- 4.3 The UNION may designate certain employees from the bargaining unit to act as stewards and shall inform the EMPLOYER in writing of such choices.
- 4.4 <u>Section A</u>. The EMPLOYER agrees to make payroll deductions from the pay of those employees who wish to participate in such voluntary plans as are approved by the UNION.
 - <u>Section B</u>. The EMPLOYER shall remit to the address designated by the UNION the aggregate deductions of all employees together with an itemized statement showing the name of each employee from whose pay deductions have been made and amount deducted during the period covered by the remittance. Such remittance shall be made on a monthly basis or on such other periodic basis as may be agreed upon.
 - <u>Section C</u>. The EMPLOYER and the UNION shall agree on such forms, rules and regulations as may become necessary for the operation of such payroll deduction plans.
- 4.5 No more than three (3) Public Works employees who are members of the UNION bargaining committee shall be paid for attending bargaining sessions held during their working hours.

ARTICLE V. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

5.1 The EMPLOYER retains the full and unrestricted right to operate and manage all manpower, facilities, and equipment in all aspects including, but not limited to, the right to plan, direct, establish, change, eliminate, and control all operations, functions, programs, and services in the Public Works Department to determine the utilization of technology, to establish and modify the organizational structure, to select, direct, determine the number of personnel, and to perform other inherent managerial functions not limited by this Agreement.

5.2 Any term and condition of employment not specifically established or modified by this Agreement shall remain solely within the discretion of the EMPLOYER to modify, establish, or eliminate.

ARTICLE VI. EMPLOYER SECURITY

- 6.1 The UNION agrees that during the life of this Agreement, it will not cause, encourage, participate in, or support any strike, slow down or other interruption of or interference with the normal functions of the EMPLOYER and will enforce this among the UNION membership.
- 6.2 Any employee who engages in a strike may have their appointment terminated by the EMPLOYER effective the date the violation first occurs. Such termination shall be effective upon written notice served upon the employee.
- 6.3 Any employee who is absent from any portion of their work assignment without permission, or who abstains wholly or in part from the full performance of their duties without permission from their EMPLOYER on the date or dates when a strike occurs is prima facie presumed to have engaged in a strike on such date or dates.
- 6.4 Any employee who knowingly strikes and whose employment has been terminated for such action may, subsequent to such violations, be appointed or reappointed, or employed or re-employed, but the employee shall be on probation for one year with respect to such civil service status, tenure of employment, or contract of employment, as they may have theretofore been entitled.
- 6.5 No employee shall be entitled to any daily pay, wages, or per diem for the days on which they engaged in a strike.

ARTICLE VII. DEFINITIONS

The terms used in this Agreement shall be defined as follows:

- 7.1 <u>Base Pay Rate</u>: The Employee's basic hourly pay rate exclusive of overtime premium or any other special allowances.
- 7.2 <u>Days</u>: Unless otherwise specified, means working days.
- 7.3 <u>Permanent Employee</u>: A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit, as defined in the Article titled Recognition, who has completed the required probationary period.
- 7.4 <u>Temporary Employee</u>: An individual so designated by the EMPLOYER who is hired in a non-continuing position for a period of less than 67 working days or if a bona fide student 100 working days. The employment of "temporary" personnel will be primarily for vacation relief, seasonal and emergency work situations.

- 7.5 UNION: Local 737, Council 65, AFSCME, AFL-CIO.
- 7.6 EMPLOYER: City of Red Wing, or it's designated representative.
- 7.7 <u>Call-Back</u>: Return of an employee to a specified work site to perform assigned duties at the express authorization of the EMPLOYER at a time other than an assigned shift. An extension of or early report to an assigned shift is not a callback.
- 7.8 <u>Employee:</u> A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit as defined in the term Article 2 of this agreement and PELRA.
- 7.9 <u>PELRA:</u> The Public Employment Labor Relations Act as contained in Minnesota Statutes.
- 7.10 IMMEDIATE FAMILY: The immediate family includes the spouse, children, step-children, foster children, parents, step parents, siblings, grandparents, step-grandparents, grandchildren, step-grandchildren, aunts, uncles, nieces, nephews, of the employee or the employee's spouse and other bonafide permanent member of the employee's household.
- 7.11 PREMIUM PAY: Payment for hours worked on Saturdays, Sundays or Holidays at a rate of 1 ½ times the employee's base. Premium pay shall be earned for hours worked on said eligible dates regardless of the number of hours worked during the week. Hours worked over 40 hours per week are considered overtime hours and not premium pay. Unscheduled callbacks would be paid at the premium rate subject to Article 13.1.
- 7.12 REGULAR PART-TIME EMPLOYEE: A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit, as defined in Article titled Recognition, who has completed the required probationary period, but works less than 40 hours per week. New employees hired after January 1, 2007, will move through the pay plan on a pro rata basis based on the number of hours compensated for. This would also apply to accrued benefit increases if applicable. Regular part-time employees working 20 hours or more per week would be eligible for prorated vacation, sick and holiday benefits. Regular part-time employees working 24 hours or more per week would be eligible for prorated health, LTD, life and ADD insurance.

ARTICLE VIII. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 8.1 For purpose of the grievance procedure, grievance is defined as a dispute or disagreement as to the interpretation or application of any term or terms of this Agreement.
- 8.2 Grievances shall be resolved in the following manner:

<u>Step 1</u>. An employee and the UNION Steward claiming a violation of the terms of this Agreement shall within ten (10) working days after the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, or ten (10) working days after the employee, through use of reasonable diligence, gained knowledge of the occurrence, meet on an informal basis-with the immediate supervisor, as designated by the City, in an attempt to resolve the grievance.

The Supervisor shall attempt to resolve the grievance within ten (10) working days.

<u>Step 2</u>. In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved by the Supervisor, the employee and/or UNION Steward shall reduce the alleged grievance to writing to serve it upon the Public Works Director within ten (10) working days following the receipt of the EMPLOYER'S Step 1 answer.

The written statement of the grievance shall set forth the nature of the grievance, the facts on which it is based, the alleged section(s) of the Agreement violated, and the relief requested. Within ten (10) working days following written receipt of the grievance, the Public Works Director shall meet with the grieving parties, attempt to resolve the grievance, and serve the EMPLOYER'S answer upon the UNION within ten (10) working days of the meeting.

Step 3. If the grievance remains unresolved, the UNION may proceed to Step 3 within ten (10) working days following receipt of the EMPLOYER'S Step 2 answer by presenting the grievance in writing to the Council Administrator or their designee. The Council Administrator shall meet with the grieving parties within ten (10) working days after receiving notice of the UNION'S intention to proceed with the grievance pursuant to Step 3.

- <u>Step 4</u>. Either party may request mediation or arbitration by serving a written notice on the other party of their intention to proceed with mediation or arbitration within ten (10) working days of receiving the Step 3 response. Any mediation of a grievance will be by mutual agreement.
- 8.3 In the event grievance arbitration becomes necessary, a list of qualified arbitrators shall be requested from the Minnesota Bureau of Mediation Services within fifteen (15) calendar days after the EMPLOYER'S Step 3 decision is received or the grievance is not resolved at mediation. The EMPLOYER and the UNION shall alternately strike names from the list until only one (1) remains. The remaining arbitrator shall hear and determine the grievance. The side striking the first name shall be decided by lot.
- 8.4 A hearing on the grievance will be held promptly by the arbitrator, and a final and binding decision shall be rendered within thirty (30) calendar days of the hearing.

- 8.5 The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the specific issue submitted and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other issue not so submitted to him/her.
- 8.6 The decision regarding the grievance shall be binding upon both parties, and the parties shall share equally the costs and fees of the arbitrator.
- 8.7 <u>Choice of Remedy</u>. If, as a result of the written EMPLOYER response in Step 3, the grievance remains unresolved, and if the grievance involves the suspension, demotion, or discharge of an employee who has completed the required probationary period, the grievance may be appealed either to Step 4 of Article VIII or to a procedure such as Section 24 of the Red Wing Personnel Rules, Veterans' Preference, or Fair Employment. If appealed to any procedure other than Step 4 of Article VIII, the grievance is not subject to the arbitration procedure as provided by Step 4 of Article VIII. The aggrieved employee shall indicate in writing which procedure is to be utilized Step 4 of Article VIII, or another appeal procedure and shall sign a statement to the effect that the choice of any other hearing precludes the aggrieved employee from making a subsequent appeal through Step 4 of Article VIII.
- 8.8 <u>Waiver</u>. If a grievance is not presented within the time limits set forth above, it shall be considered "waived." If a grievance is not appealed to the next step within the specified time limit or any agreed extension thereof, it shall be considered settled on the basis of the EMPLOYER'S last answer. If the EMPLOYER does not answer a grievance or an appeal thereof within the specified time limit, the UNION may elect to treat the grievance as denied at that step and immediately appeal the grievance to the next step. The time limit in each step may be extended by mutual agreement of the EMPLOYER and the UNION.

ARTICLE IX. DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

- 9.1 The EMPLOYER shall have the right to discipline employees for just cause.
- 9.2 Disciplinary action by the EMPLOYER shall include:
 - A. Oral reprimand, or
 - B. Written reprimand, or
 - C. Suspension, or
 - D. Demotion, or
 - E. Discharge.
- 9.3 The EMPLOYER agrees to limit suspension to ten (10) days and give written notice of such action provided however, that an arbitrator may impose a penalty beyond the ten (10) day limit.

- 9.4 Other than oral reprimands, written documentation of disciplinary actions shall be entered into the employee's personnel file. Each written entry shall be read by the employee and acknowledged by signature of the employee. A copy of each disciplinary action shall be given to the employee and one copy mailed to the President of the UNION.
- 9.5 Employees shall have the right, upon written request, to review the contents of their own personnel file at reasonable times. Employees may examine their own individual personnel files in accordance with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.
- 9.6 All references to and documentation of a disciplinary action shall not be considered after five years of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the disciplinary action, provided there are no additional disciplinary actions within that five year period. If there are additional disciplinary actions, the five years will start over from the date that the new discipline was imposed.

ARTICLE X. PROBATIONARY PERIODS

- 10.1 All personnel hired to a permanent employment status shall serve a six (6) month continuous probationary work period during which time the employee's fitness and ability to perform the job classification duties and responsibilities shall be evaluated and any necessary retraining or re-instruction shall be undertaken. The probationary work period for the Public Works Apprentice position shall be a twelve (12) month continuous probationary work period.
- 10.2 All permanent employees serving a probationary period shall earn sick leave benefits and vacation benefits in accordance with <u>Vacation and Sick Leave</u> Articles. During the probationary period, employees may accumulate and use sick and vacation leave.
- 10.3 During the probationary period, the employee may be terminated at the sole discretion of the EMPLOYER. Probationary employees may not grieve disciplinary actions. An employee terminated during the probationary period shall receive a written notice of termination, which will include the reason for termination, and a copy will be sent to the UNION.
- 10.4 Employees promoted to a higher job classification shall serve a thirty (30) work day continuous probationary work period during which time the employee's fitness and ability to perform the job classification duties and responsibilities shall be evaluated, and any necessary retraining or re-instruction shall be undertaken.
- 10.5 At any time during the probationary period, an employee may be demoted by the EMPLOYER for just cause based upon job performance to the job classification from which the employee was promoted. An employee demoted during the probationary

- period shall receive written notice of such demotion, which will include the reason(s) for demotion, a copy of which will be sent to the UNION.
- 10.6 Employees shall have the right, during a promotional probationary period, to voluntarily demote to their previously held job classification, within 30 days upon written request.
- 10.7 Employees serving a probationary period based on a promotion shall suffer no loss or reduction of benefits provided in the Agreement.
- 10.8 Personnel hired in a "temporary" employment status shall be employed for a period not to exceed sixty-seven (67) (100 days if a bona fide student) working days. "Temporary" personnel shall be compensated at the appropriate hourly wage rate set by the EMPLOYER.
- 10.9 The EMPLOYER shall provide notice to the applicable Local UNION President with information on all new hires whose positions fall within the bargaining unit within ten (10) days of the new employee's start date. Such information shall include the employee's name, position for which they were hired including department, start date, and rate of pay.

ARTICLE XI. HOURS OF WORK

- 11.1 The sole authority in assigning work schedules is the EMPLOYER. The normal work week for an employee of the Department of Public Works shall consist of either five, eight (8) consecutive hour shifts; four, nine (9) consecutive hour shifts and one, four (4) consecutive hour shift; or four, ten (10) consecutive hour shifts exclusive of meal periods. Refuse and recycling employees typically work four (4) 9 hour shifts and one (1) 4 hour shift. During holiday weeks, the 4 hour work day will be the holiday for that week. The additional 4 hours of holiday pay will be accrued into the floating holiday bank to be used at a later date. This bank must be depleted by December 15 of each year. During the approximately last three weeks of the calendar year, the refuse and recycling employees' normal schedule will be changed to 8 hours a day for the five day work week. The EMPLOYER retains sole discretion in scheduling employees and in determining the number of eight, nine, and ten hour shift schedules. Split shifts or weekly shifts not described above shall not be scheduled except by mutual agreement of the EMPLOYER, affected employee and the UNION.

 Employees shall be scheduled to work on a regular work shift, except in cases of
 - Employees shall be scheduled to work on a regular work shift, except in cases of emergency and each work shift shall have a regular starting and quitting time. Any work scheduled over the established work shift or forty (40) hours per week shall be considered as overtime. If the City shall deem a change in shift necessary, the City will give the UNION a two (2) week notice as to the change.
- 11.2 The following schedule shall be in effect for employees hired prior to 1/1/2022:

Saturdays & Sundays Premium Time (Payable at time and one-half (1½))

The following schedule shall be in effect for employees hired after 1/1/2022:

Saturdays & Sundays Base Rate + Premium Pay at 10%

An employee notified of a shift change before the end of their shift shall receive their base rate of pay plus 8% for their entire work shift when all or a portion of the worked hours are between the hours of 5:00pm and 6:00am.

The EMPLOYER will offer premium pay as equally as possible among employees in the same job classification.

11.3 In the event that work is required because of unusual circumstances such as (but not limited to) fire, flood, snow, sleet, or breakdown of municipal equipment or facilities, it may be required for an employee to work different hours other than normal shifts (except Rink and Street Sweeping). Each employee has an obligation to work overtime or callbacks, if requested, unless unusual circumstances prevent them from so working. No notice is required under this provision. Overtime refused shall be counted as overtime not worked.

ARTICLE XII. OVERTIME

- 12.1 The EMPLOYER shall have the right to require employees to work additional time.
- 12.2 Conditions and rate at which overtime premiums will be paid: Hours worked in excess of normal work shift hours will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times the employee's regular base pay rate including any applicable shift differential regardless of whether or not the work shift falls over more than one payroll period.
- 12.3 Hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week will be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1½) times the employee's regular base pay rate. Employees may request scheduled work time off in lieu of working more than 40 hours if mutually agreed by the EMPLOYER and affected employee.
- 12.4 The UNION recognizes that certain projects cannot be shut down at the end of the regular workday. Employees needed to complete the project can be required by the EMPLOYER to work an extended day.
- 12.5 The EMPLOYER will offer overtime as equally as possible among employees in the same job classification.
- 12.6 Refusal to work shall be recorded and counted as overtime offered but not worked.

- 12.7 If, after a classification has been exhausted, insufficient employees have volunteered to work, then the least senior employee shall be required to work unless physically incapable. This procedure shall be followed until the EMPLOYER'S needs are met.
- 12.8 Except as stated expressly in this Article, nothing shall relieve the employee of their responsibility to report when called for overtime or emergency work, especially during situations involving fire, flood, snow, sleet or breakdown of municipal equipment or facilities.
- 12.9 For the purpose of computing overtime compensation, overtime hours worked shall not be pyramided, compounded or paid twice for the same hours worked.
- 12.10 <u>Compensatory Time</u>. The following compensatory (comp) time provision shall be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act. An employee may elect to earn comp time (16 hours of overtime) at the appropriate overtime rate for use under the following conditions:

Compensation will take the form of either time and one-half pay or compensatory time. Compensatory time is paid time off at the rate of one and one-half hours off for each hour of overtime worked.

Overtime hours must be approved in advance by the employee's supervisor. Overtime earned will be paid at the rate of one and one-half on the next regularly scheduled payroll date. The maximum compensatory time hours that an employee can accumulate for each year is 60 hours. Overtime hours worked when at the maximum shall be paid as overtime.

All compensatory time must be taken in the year earned or have at least applied for compensatory time leave in the months of January or February of the following year by the second Friday in December. Compensatory time earned but not used or applied for use in January or February by the December deadline shall be zeroed out and paid as overtime in conjunction with the last regularly scheduled pay period in December. Department Heads are responsible for generating the necessary Personnel Action Form to zero out the compensatory time balance and attach any Compensatory time leave requests for the months of January and February for the Council Administrator's signature the third Tuesday in December.

When the workload permits, comp time may be utilized by applying in advance and is subject to approval of the EMPLOYER. Requests will not be approved if it creates scheduling problem or would require the City to pay additional overtime to cover for comp time used.

ARTICLE XIII. CALLBACK

13.1 An employee called in for work at a time other than their scheduled shift will be compensated for a minimum of three (3) hours pay at one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee's base pay rate. An employee called in between the hours of 11 pm and 5 am or on a holiday will be compensated for a minimum of three (3) hours pay at two (2) times the employee's base pay rate. An extension of or early report to a scheduled shift for duty does not qualify the employee for the two (2) hour minimum. A callback before 5 am when scheduled to work a 7 am shift would be considered a callback and a callback after 5 am would not be considered a callback.

ARTICLE XIV. MEAL AND REST PERIODS

- 14.1 Each employee of the Department of Public Works shall be authorized one (1) thirty (30) minute unpaid meal period per work shift. The meal period, whenever possible, shall be scheduled near the middle of the shift. Any other interruption for meals shall be designated by the EMPLOYER and at the expense of the employee. Employees snowplowing at night shall have the option of taking the thirty minute unpaid meal period or continuing work.
- 14.2 Employees working a normal workday shall receive one (1) thirty (30) minute rest period during each eight (8) hour normal workday. If the City schedules ten (10) hour workdays, there shall be a thirty (30) minute rest period during the second half of the day. All break time includes travel time.

ARTICLE XV. HOLIDAYS

- 15.1 The following days shall be recognized and observed as paid holidays for the employees of the Department of Public Works: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and two (2) floating holidays. Christmas Eve afternoon and New Year's Eve afternoon shall also be observed as holidays commencing at 11 a.m. The EMPLOYER will allow employees to use floating holidays for Good Friday and/or Chief Red Wing Day (Columbus Day) if there is at least minimum staffing levels in their departments. When scheduling conflicts arise, the most senior employee will have priority. For employees starting or ending their employment, the floating holiday will be prorated on a calendar year basis. If the EMPLOYER grants an additional paid holiday to any other employee group of the City, said holiday shall be added to the list of paid holidays for the employees covered by this agreement.
- 15.2 Christmas Eve afternoon and New Year's Eve afternoon shall be holidays. These holidays shall begin at the beginning of the second half of the employee's shift. If Christmas Day and/or New Year's Day fall on a Sunday or Monday, these afternoon holidays shall be celebrated on the preceding Friday.

- 15.3 Employees working a normal Monday through Friday work week who are required to be on duty on any holiday shall be paid time and one-half (1 ½) for the hours worked, in addition to the base pay rate.
- 15.4 The floating holiday will be treated as a regular holiday when applied for at least two weeks in advance. If the EMPLOYER calls an employee in to work on their elected floating holiday, the employee will receive their holiday pay, plus time and one-half for hours worked.

ARTICLE XVI. VACATIONS

- 16.1 Employees with the most seniority will have preference as to time of taking their vacation, if their application for vacation is made by January 31. However, if a less senior employee has applied for a week off **prior** to a more senior employee's request for one (1) day, the request for a week off will supersede the request for one (1) day regardless of seniority.
- 16.2 Vacation shall be given to employees as follows:

Months of Service										
0 to 24 months	0-2yrs	3.08 hrs/biweekly	10 days/yr.							
25 to 96 months	3-8yrs	4.62 hrs/biweekly	15 days/yr.							
97 to 180 months	9-15yrs	6.46 hrs/biweekly	21 days/yr.							
181 to 216 months	16-18yrs	6.77 hrs/biweekly	22 days/yr.							
217 to 252 months	19-21yrs	7.08 hrs/biweekly	23 days/yr.							
253 to 288 months	22-24yrs	7.39 hrs/biweekly	24 days/yr.							
289 months or more	25+yrs	7.69 hrs/biweekly	25 days/yr.							

A vacation bank of 40 hours, provided when hired, may be used for pre-approved time off during probation or upon completion of probation. Vacation accrual will start at the 6-month mark. If an employee separates from employment during the first six months, the value equals 3.08 hours per pay period worked minus any vacation amount used.

For example, when hired, an employee receives 40 hours of vacation and works eight pay periods equaling 24.64 hours under the accrual system. During that time, they took two days off or 16 hours. That employee would receive a payout of 8.84 hours.

Part-time employees will earn on the same schedule but earn a prorated share which is in direct relation to the number of hours they work versus the 40 hour schedule, e.g. an employee who has worked 38 months and works 20 hours per week will receive 5 hours vacation per month.

16.3 Vacation leaves may be taken in quarter hour increments.

- 16.4 The employee requesting vacation leave shall receive verification of vacation approval or denial when requesting vacation leave within a reasonable time period.
- 16.5 An employee leaving employment voluntarily, or having been discharged, shall be compensated for any unused vacation leave earned by the employee up to the date of termination of employment. See also Appendix C if applicable.

ARTICLE XVII. LEAVES

- 17.1 The employee shall submit in writing to their immediate supervisor any request for an unpaid leave of absence. The request shall state the reason the leave of absence is being requested and the length of time off the employee desires. If an employee has utilized all available accrued vacation and sick leave, leave without pay for reasonable and short periods of time (one day or less) may be granted by the employee's department head. Extended leaves of absence are for a period more than one full day and shall only be granted by the Council Administrator or their designee. Authorization for leaves of absence shall be solely within the discretion of the EMPLOYER.
- 17.2 Employees required to serve on jury duty shall be granted their regular daily pay less the amount of jury or witness fees paid for such period of service. If the employee is excused after reporting and returns to work, they will not be deducted for that day.
- 17.3 If the unpaid leave is not covered under FMLA, vacation leave, sick leave, and holiday pay will not accrue during any unpaid leave of absence that lasts for more than 12 consecutive work days or longer. Health insurance premiums will be pro-rated on a daily basis during an unpaid leave of absence longer than 12 consecutive days.

ARTICLE XVIII. SICK LEAVE

- 18.1 Employees shall earn sick leave at the rate of 4.62 hours bi-weekly. Sick leave may be accumulated to a maximum limit of 1,000 hours. After reaching the maximum an employee will continue to earn sick leave at the rate of .92 hours bi-weekly.
- 18.2 The City will maintain two (2) separate accrual banks for sick leave; one for the hours accumulated to 1,000 hours and one for any accrued hours over 1,000 hours. If an employee has accumulated hours in both banks and they use sick time, those hours will be deducted from the initial bank; therefore earning those hours back at the higher accrual rate.
- 18.3 Sick leave with pay must be used only for the following reasons:
 - A. Personal illness or physical incapacity which renders the employee unable to perform assigned job duties and responsibilities.
 - B. Required medical care.
 - C. Exposure to contagious disease under circumstances in which the health of the

- employees with whom the employee is associated or members of the public with whom the employee deals would be endangered by the employee's attendance on duty.
- D. Illness or injury to a member of the employee's immediate family which requires the employee's personal care and attendance provided adequate reasons are given to the supervisor or Department Head for reasonable periods of time as the employee's attendance may be necessary, on the same terms upon which the employee is able to use sick leave benefits for the employee's own illness or injury.
- E. Safety leave as defined in MN Statute 181.9413, for the assistance to the employee or to the employee's immediate family.
- 18.4 An employee on sick leave shall inform the Supervisor of this fact and the reason therefore prior to the commencement of the scheduled workday, unless circumstances prevent the employee from notifying the EMPLOYER of the fact.
- 18.5 The Director of Public Works may require written medical verification of the employee's absence after three (3) days.
- 18.6 Sick leave may be taken in quarter hour increments.
- 18.7 An employee who has been unable to work for a period of time because of illness or injury may be required, before being permitted to return to work, to furnish the EMPLOYER with medical evidence that said employee is able to perform all significant duties of the job in a competent manner and without hazard to her/himself or others.
- 18.8 An employee receiving sick leave with pay who simultaneously receives compensation under Workers' Compensation Laws shall receive, for the duration of such compensation, only that portion of their regular salary which will, together with said compensation, equal their regular salary. The accrued sick leave of the employee will be reduced only in proportion to the amount of compensation paid by the City.
- 18.9 The EMPLOYER shall pay one-third of the employee's sick leave (up to 1,000 hour bank) and one-half of the balance in the sick bank (over 1,000 hour bank) upon resignation, retirement or death. See also Appendix C if applicable.
- 18.10 An employee who participates in the health screening incentive program and meets the eligibility for the next year will be granted a wellness day in the first payroll of January to be used in that calendar year. Any individual who qualifies within the year will receive a prorated accrual and will then need to meet the eligibility for the next year. The wellness day is paid time off that the employee may use on a regularly scheduled workday for any reason with prior approval from the employee's supervisor. A wellness

day may not be broken into hours and/or divided across multiple workdays and it must be used within the calendar year. Wellness days have no cash value and an unused wellness day will not be paid out to the employee under any circumstances.

ARTICLE XIX. EMERGENCY LEAVE

- 19.1 An employee shall be granted emergency leave with pay in the event of a death, serious injury, or a serious or contagious illness within the immediate family. Emergency leave will be deducted from the employee's sick leave balance.
- 19.2 An employee selected to be a pallbearer shall be allowed one-half (½) day emergency leave with pay. An employee shall be allowed three (3) day's minimum of emergency leave as a funeral leave for a death in the immediate family. Emergency leave beyond the three days will be evaluated on a case by case basis approved by City Council Administrator.
- 19.3 <u>Limitations:</u> Emergency leave shall be granted only for the time necessary to attend to the emergency situation, such as time needed to travel to and from and attend a funeral including reasonable family services and events, or time needed when an immediate family member is seriously injured or ill e.g. significant surgery, hospitalization, emergency medical service, recovery after surgery, grief counseling, estate matters, illness recovery or hospice-type arrangements.

The request for emergency leave along with a complete description of the circumstances causing the emergency leave shall be made to the employee's supervisor. Careful consideration shall be given to the nature of the emergency and the intent and purpose of this leave.

ARTICLE XX. INSURANCE

20.1 The EMPLOYER will provide a basic health insurance program similar to the one in effect on the date of this Contract. For family coverage, the employee will pay 11% of the gross family premium. For single coverage, the employee will pay 26% of the employee paid family premium. The annual City funding into the VEBA for the Open Access Network is \$750 single/\$1500 family. The annual City funding into the VEBA for the Limited Access Network is \$1250 single/\$2500 family. Provisions of state law relating to changes in aggregate benefit reductions apply only to the basic plan. The EMPLOYER will provide a second option for health insurance in the form of a high deductible plan. For family coverage, the employee will pay 11% of the gross family premium. For single coverage, the employee will pay 26% of the employee paid family premium. The annual City funding into the Health Savings Account or VEBA for the Open Access Network is \$1750 single/\$3500 family. The annual City funding into the Health Savings Account or VEBA for the Limited Access Network is \$2250 single/\$4500 family. Provisions of state law relating to changes in aggregate benefit

reductions apply only to the basic plan. The City, in its discretion, may eliminate this second option at the end of any plan year.

The EMPLOYER will provide a third option for health insurance program in the form of a high deductible/minimum value plan. For family coverage, the employee will pay 11% of the gross family premium. For single coverage, the employee will pay 26% of the employee paid family premium. The annual City funding into the Health Savings Account or VEBA for the Open Access Network is \$2625 single/\$5250 family. The annual City funding into the Health Savings Account or VEBA for the Limited Access Network is \$3125 single/\$6250 family. In 2023, the City will also provide an Accident Policy through AFLAC for those EMPLOYEES who participate in the high deductible/minimum value plan. Provisions of state law relating to changes in aggregate benefit reductions apply only to the basic plan. The City, in its discretion, may eliminate this third option at the end of any plan year.

The 2023 deductible amounts are: basic health insurance program (first option) \$1500/\$3500, high deductible plan (second option) \$3500/\$7000, and high deductible/minimum value plan (third option) \$6350/\$12,700.

- 20.2 The EMPLOYER will provide a voluntary basic dental program. The Employee will pay 25% of the premium.
- 20.3 The EMPLOYER shall also provide \$50,000 of term life insurance.
- 20.4 The EMPLOYER shall also provide group long-term disability. The entire premium for this policy shall be paid by the EMPLOYER with the benefit being taxable to the employee.
- 20.5 Employees that have the maximum accumulated sick leave to their credit who experience an injury or extended illness which causes them to use their accumulated sick leave without returning to work shall be permitted to continue their group hospitalization and life insurance policy for six months after all sick leave has been used. During the first three months of this extended period, the EMPLOYER shall pay the EMPLOYER'S share of the premium as if the employee were working. During the second three-month period, the employee shall pay the entire premium. All extensions pursuant to this paragraph shall be subject to approval by the EMPLOYER'S insurance carrier.
- 20.6 Upon retirement prior to age 70, the employee shall be able to continue the life insurance protection pursuant to the provisions of the group policy under an individual plan at whatever rate may be applicable at retirement age. At age 70, the life insurance protection will cease.

- 20.7 The UNION shall be allowed two representatives on an insurance advisory committee, which will consist of Union, non-union, and management representatives. The purpose of the committee shall be to give input to the EMPLOYER regarding health, life and accidental insurance plans.
- The EMPLOYER will provide an EMPLOYEE who has an alternative source of group 20.8 health coverage that is not a part of the City's group plan an opt-out payment of \$3,600 for the year. (For less than the whole year, the opt-out payment is adjusted proportionately regarding the period for which the City's health coverage would have applied.) No EMPLOYEE will be allowed to waive/reduce existing coverage unless they can offer proof of coverage under an alternative group health plan. Further, no opt-out payment is due if the City knows or has reason to know that the EMPLOYEE or any other member of the EMPLOYEE's expected tax family does not have, or will not have, the alternative coverage. An EMPLOYEE may qualify as a participant in the Opt-Out program during the plan year if HR is notified of a qualifying life- changing event (e.g., marriage) that provides them with alternative coverage, within thirty days of the event. The opt-out payment is paid in equal monthly installments on the EMPLOYEE'S 1st pay period of the month. If an EMPLOYEE participating in the Opt-Out program separates employment with the City during a plan year, an opt-out payment continues only through the last payroll period employed. An opt-out and waiver of health coverage is in effect for only one (1) plan year (January 1- December 31, 2023)

ARTICLE XXI. SENIORITY

- 21.1 Seniority shall be in accordance with employee's last date of hire under the Department of Public Works. New employees hired shall be considered as probationary employees for the first six (6) months of their employment. When an employee finishes the probationary period, they shall be entered on the seniority list of the department of the City and shall rank for seniority from the last date of employment. Public Works Apprentice employees shall have the date of their completion of probation as the seniority date. Should a Public Works Apprentice Employee be promoted into a Maintenance Position, their seniority date shall be considered their first date of employment with the City.
- 21.2 The EMPLOYER shall prepare a seniority list on the date of this Agreement which will show the name and job title of all employees entitled to seniority. The EMPLOYER will keep the seniority list up to date and will provide the UNION with an up-to-date copy annually.
- 21.3 An employee shall lose seniority for the following reasons only:
 - A. They resign.
 - B. They are discharged.

- C. They do not return to work when recalled from layoff as set forth in the recall procedure.
- 21.4 The word lay off shall mean a reduction in the working force due to the decrease of work. If it becomes necessary for a layoff, the following procedure shall be mandatory. Probationary, temporary, and seasonal employees will be laid off first. Senior employees will be laid off according to seniority and the ability and qualifications to perform the work available.
- 21.5 When the working force is increased after a layoff, employees will be recalled according to seniority in the inverse order of layoff, and the ability and qualification to perform the work available. Notice of recall shall be sent to employees at their last known address by Registered or Certified mail. If the employee fails to report to work within ten (10) calendar days from the date of mailing of notice of recall, they shall be considered as having resigned.

ARTICLE XXII. JOB POSTING AND VACANCIES

- 22.1 The EMPLOYER and the UNION agree that permanent vacancies within the designated bargaining unit shall be filled based on the concept of promotion from within, provided that applicants:
 - A. Have the necessary qualifications to meet the standards of the job vacancy; and
 - B. Have the ability to perform the duties and responsibilities of the job vacancy.
 - The position of Public Works Apprentice is not subject to the internal posting requirement.
- 22.2 Employees filling a higher job classification based on the provisions of this Article shall be subject to the conditions of Article X, Probationary Periods.
- 22.3 The EMPLOYER has the right to final decision in the selection of employees to fill posted jobs-based on qualifications, abilities, and experience. Such decisions shall be subject to the grievance procedure. Where employees meet the job qualifications, and possess the required abilities, senior employees shall be given preference. In the event an employee's seniority is bypassed, they shall, upon written request to the Director of Public Works, be given the reasons in writing.
- 22.4 Job vacancies within the designated bargaining unit will be posted for five (5) working days so members of the bargaining unit can sign the posting list and be considered for such vacancies. Job postings shall include the position's general duties, rate of pay, classification, and initial job assignment; this general area of job assignment on the posting shall not affect the ability of the supervisor to make job assignments. All

- persons desiring to apply for said vacancy shall apply within that five (5) day period, or have indicated their interest on the appropriate leave form.
- 22.5 The EMPLOYER shall not be required to report any vacancy when a promoted employee reverts back to their former job within one month of the promotion. The EMPLOYER shall go to the previously posted list and attempt to fill the position from the other employees who have signed, or upon finding none of these employees qualified, shall hire from outside the bargaining unit. If an employee reverts back to their former position after one month of the promotion, then the EMPLOYER shall post the vacancy.
- 22.6 Employees may elect to sign a posting for a vacancy in accordance with the provisions of this Article, within their own job classification when the vacant position offers opportunity for promotion or improved working conditions.
- 22.7 Pay on temporary assignment:
 - A. Employees assigned to work in a higher paid classification shall be paid at the greater of the next highest rate on the pay schedule for said higher classification, or a minimum of 75 cents per hour for the full period of time worked on temporary assignment in that classification. Increments of less than one hour will not be submitted and hours will be rounded to the nearest quarter hour after the first hour.
 - B. The above stated provision shall not apply if the work is being done under supervision for the express purpose of training employees or employees under probation.
- 22.8 Employees promoted to a higher job classification shall receive starting pay at the next highest rate on the pay schedule with a minimum of \$1.00 per hour for said higher classification and thereafter be governed by all other provisions of the pay schedule. Section 10.4 to 10.7 will apply to Employees accepting a lateral move or demotion except that they will be permitted to return to their former position within 30 working days. Seniority in a higher-grade classification within the same department or type of work will count as seniority in the new position.

ARTICLE XXIII. NON DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM

- 23.1 It is agreed by the EMPLOYER and the UNION that both parties shall provide for equal employment opportunities and will not discriminate against any employee on the basis prohibited by state or federal law such as membership in the union without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, political affiliation, disability, marital status, status with regard to public assistance, sex, age, or criminal record.
- 23.2 Furthermore, the UNION agrees to share equally with EMPLOYER the responsibility for applying the provisions of this agreement.

ARTICLE XXIV. SAFETY

- 24.1 The EMPLOYER and the UNION agree regarding the necessity of establishing safe and healthy working conditions. Employees are obligated to cooperate in the implementation of reasonable regulations establishing such conditions.
- 24.2 The EMPLOYER shall meet with the employee safety committee at least once every two months. The Employee committee is to be comprised of no more than three (3) employees, and meetings are to be restricted to no more than two hours in length and are to be scheduled at a time during the work day so as to least disrupt the work day.
- 24.3 The EMPLOYER shall furnish employees with any required (OSHA or City policy) safety equipment. Such equipment will be assigned to affected employees and shall only be used for City employment purposes. Any employee authorized to purchase such equipment (e.g. boots, prescription safety glasses, lenses, and frames) may do so and the EMPLOYER will reimburse the employee up to the EMPLOYER-paid amount (employee pays any excess with cash or through a payroll deduction) provided that the equipment meets or exceeds all ANSI/OSHA/EMPLOYER standards and/or specifications. The EMPLOYER-paid amount shall equal the cost of purchasing the minimum-required safety equipment.

Probationary employees shall purchase at their own expense any personalized safety equipment and upon successful completion of their probationary period will be reimbursed at the normal EMPLOYER-paid amount (employee pays any excess).

Employees shall provide reasonable maintenance and care for such equipment and assure that it is not carelessly abused or neglected. The EMPLOYER will replace or repair such equipment when required by normal wear and tear or by bona fide accidental damage. The EMPLOYER may not replace lost or stolen equipment, if it determines that the equipment was lost or stolen due to negligence by the employee. Any equipment purchased with EMPLOYER money, or for which the employee has been reimbursed, will be promptly returned upon leaving City employment and before receiving their last paycheck.

ARTICLE XXV. TOOLS

25.1 The EMPLOYER shall furnish all tools necessary for the mechanics to accomplish their assigned tasks and work responsibilities. Replacement tools shall also be provided. Employees are responsible for the proper care and maintenance of all tools furnished.

ARTICLE XXVI. WAIVER OF BARGAINING

26.1 Any and all prior agreements, resolutions, practices, policies, rules, and regulations regarding terms and conditions of employment, to the extent inconsistent with provisions of this Agreement, are hereby superseded, and, therefore, this Agreement

constitutes the sole and entire existing agreement between the EMPLOYER and the UNION.

- 26.2 The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this contract, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the EMPLOYER and the UNION, for the life of this contract, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- 26.3 This Agreement may be amended any time during its life upon the mutual consent of the EMPLOYER and the UNION. Such amendment, to be enforceable, must be in writing and attached to all executed copies of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXVII. SAVINGS CLAUSE

27.1 This Agreement is subject to the laws of the United States and the State of Minnesota. In the event that any provision, phrase or clause of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by any court having jurisdiction, the decision shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, it being the expressed intention of the parties that all other provisions remain in full force and effect. Voided portions may be renegotiated at the request of either party.

ARTICLE XXVIII. TUITION, TEXTBOOK, AND LICENSES

- 28.1 The EMPLOYER shall pay all tuition and textbook costs for schooling required by the EMPLOYER. The EMPLOYER shall compensate employees at their regular rate of pay for travel to and attendance at any training session mandated by the EMPLOYER.
- 28.2 The EMPLOYER shall provide employees use of city vehicles in preparation and conduct of required state truck driver license tests.

ARTICLE XXIX. UNION/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS

29.1 The UNION and the EMPLOYER shall meet and confer on a quarterly basis for the purposes of prompting harmonious relations between the EMPLOYER and UNION. The EMPLOYER will be represented by the Council Administrator and other administrative personnel they assign.

ARTICLE XXX. TRAINING/EDUCATION

- 30.1 Tuition reimbursement is available for members of this bargaining unit per the City's Personnel Policy.
- 30.2 A \$0.25 per hour incentive will be paid for Landfill Operators (Solid Waste Division or Streets employees only) until the landfill is closed and no license is needed and for Certified Pool Operators or Aquatic Facility Operators (Parks employees only (either certification, not both)) holding current and up-to-date Aquatic Facility Operator (AFO)certifications. The EMPLOYER will determine the number of employees for each certification.
- 30.3 The EMPLOYER will pay a \$500 stipend each year to an employee who is a Certified Playground Safety Inspector (CPSI) and whose work requires maintenance/work on City playground equipment. The stipend will be paid over the twenty-six pay periods each year. The EMPLOYER will determine how many employees it needs with the certification and only those employees will receive the additional pay.

ARTICLE XXXI. DURATION

31.1 The terms and provisions of this Agreement, except where specifically noted otherwise herein, shall become effective January 1, 2023 and shall extend through December 31, 2024 and shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter, unless negotiations are initiated pursuant to the PELRA, as amended. The parties shall commence negotiations for a successor contract upon the written request of either party, and such negotiations shall commence no later than August 31 of the Contract's expiration year.

ARTICLE XXXII. WAGES AND CLASSIFICATIONS

32.1 The EMPLOYER shall have the exclusive right to determine job descriptions. The EMPLOYER agrees to discuss the terms and conditions of employment and classifications of any new permanent position prior to posting and filing and, thereafter, meet and negotiate on any terms and conditions in disagreement. Proposed changes in the job descriptions will be discussed with the UNION and reasonable notice given before such changes take effect. Job descriptions for all positions in the bargaining unit shall be attached to this agreement, but are not a part of it.

If the City ends up being in non-compliance with the comparable worth plan, the City must be able to make the necessary adjustment at that time in order to be in compliance with the comparable worth statute. City agrees to meet and negotiate with the UNION the effects of these changes.

Witness our hands and seals this 13th day of February, 2023 at Red Wing, Minnesota.

FOR THE EMPLOYER: FOR THE UNION:
City of Red Wing AFSCME Public Works, Local 737,
Council 65

— Docusigned by: Mile Wilson	Docusigned by: Max Forrester
∽ઃM ichael ⊧Wilson, Mayor	—∞MaxvForrester, Labor Representative
DocuSigned by:	DocuSigned by:
kay kullmann	Jesse Luliman Brasidant Land 1727
—⊶Teri7Swanson, City Clerk	ાં હેલ્લા ક્રિયામાલા, President Local 737
DocuSigned by:	Dan Herry
Tun Swawsow	

Appendix A-2023 Pay Table 3% COLA Effective 1/1/23

Start 6 1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year 6 year 7 year 8 year 9 year

Position	DBM Grade	DBM Points	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11
-Public Service Worker	B21	1667	\$20.33	\$20.94	\$21.55								
Maintenance, Fleet Supply Controller, Apprentice Assistant Operator, Apprentice Electrician, Locator/Maintenance	B22	2000	\$22.87	\$23.55	\$24.24	\$24.92	\$25.61	\$26.29	\$26.98	\$27.67	\$28.36	\$29.04	\$29.72
Facility Repair Technician, Mechanic, FEFC Maintenance Operator	B23	2333	\$25.29	\$26.05	\$26.81	\$27.56	\$28.33	\$29.09	\$29.85	\$30.60	\$31.36	\$32.13	\$32.88
City Plumber, Electrician, Facilities Maintenance Journeyman	B25	3250	\$31.44	\$32.37	\$33.32	\$34.27	\$35.21	\$36.15	\$37.09	\$38.04	\$38.98	\$39.92	\$40.86
Maintenance Lead, Operations Foreman	B31	2750	\$28.18	\$29.03	\$29.88	\$30.72	\$31.57	\$32.41	\$33.26	\$34.10	\$34.95	\$35.79	\$36.64
Operations Foreman- Trades	B32	3250	\$31.44	\$32.37	\$33.32	\$34.27	\$35.21	\$36.15	\$37.09	\$38.04	\$38.98	\$39.92	\$40.86

Unless as noted below, employees starting at Step 1 upon hire will move to Step 2 after 6 months of employment and upon completion of probationary period and will advance to Step 3 after one year in position and will move thruogh each step annually thereafter based on time in position anniversary date.

Employees hired into Step 1 will be eligible to move to Step 2 after six months in the position. On the position anniversary date and annually thereafter, will be eligible to move to the next step.

Position	DBM Grade	DBM Points	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9	Step 10	Step 11
PW Apprentice	A12	1000	\$14.94	\$15.39	\$15.83	\$16.28	\$16.73	\$17.18	\$17.62	\$18.08	\$18.52	\$18.97	\$19.42

Public Works Apprentice Program: New employees are placed on Step 1-3 depending on previous experience and qualifications. Public Service Worker: New employees who have a Class B CDL are placed on Step 1 and move through steps every six months.

^{**}Employees actively working as of June 30, 2023 will receive at \$1000 stipend.

Appendix B-2024 Pay Table 3% COLA Effective 1/1/24

1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year 6 year 7 year 8 year 9 year Start month **DBM** Step **DBM** Step **Position Grade Points** 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Public Service Worker **B21** 1667 \$20.94 \$21.57 \$22.20 Maintenance, Fleet Supply Controller, Apprentice Assistant Operator, Apprentice Electrician, Locator/Maintenance \$23.56 | \$24.26 | \$24.97 | \$25.67 | \$26.38 | \$27.08 | \$27.79 | \$28.50 | \$29.21 | \$29.91 | \$30.61 **B22** 2000 **Facility Repair** Technician, Mechanic, **FEFC Maintenance** Operator \$26.05 | \$26.83 | \$27.61 | \$28.39 | \$29.18 | \$29.96 | \$30.75 | \$31.52 | \$32.30 | \$33.09 | \$33.87 **B23** 2333 City Plumber, Electrician, Facilities Maintenance Journeyman 3250 \$32.38|\$33.34|\$34.32|\$35.30|\$36.27|\$37.23|\$38.20|\$39.18|\$40.15|\$41.12|\$42.09 B25 Maintenance Lead, \$29.03 | \$29.90 | \$30.78 | \$31.64 | \$32.52 | \$33.38 | \$34.26 | \$35.12 | \$36.00 | \$36.86 | \$37.74 Operations Foreman **B31** 2750 Operations Foreman-**Trades** 3250 \$32.38 \$33.34 \$34.32 \$35.30 \$36.27 \$37.23 \$38.20 \$39.18 \$40.15 \$41.12 \$42.09 **B32**

Unless as noted below, employees starting at Step 1 upon hire will move to Step 2 after 6 months of employment and upon completion of probationary period and will advance to Step 3 after one year in position and will move thruogh each step annually thereafter based on time in position anniversary date.

Employees hired into Step 1 will be eligible to move to Step 2 after six months in the position. On the position anniversary date and annually thereafter, will be eligible to move to the next step.

Position	DBM	DBM	Step										
	Grade	Points	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11
PW Apprentice	A12	1000	\$15.39	\$15.85	\$16.30	\$16.77	\$17.23	\$17.70	\$18.15	\$18.62	\$19.08	\$19.54	\$20.00

Public Works Apprentice Program: New employees are placed on Step 1-3 depending on previous experience and Public Service Worker: New employees who have a Class B CDL are placed on Step 1 and move through steps every six

Appendix C – Payment of Accrued Benefits (Severance) into Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) Account

The Public Works Unit chooses to provide additional funding into the Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association (VEBA) as follows:

Unused Vacation

Employees with less than 5 years City employment	100 percent cash out
Employees with 5-10 years City employment	25 percent to VEBA
Employees with 10-15 years City employment	50 percent to VEBA
Employees with 15+ years City employment	100 percent to VEBA

Unused Sick Leave payable pursuant to Section 18.9 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement

Employees with less than 5 years City employment	100 percent cash out
Employees with 5-10 years City employment	25 percent to VEBA
Employees with 10-15 years City employment	50 percent to VEBA
Employees with 15+ years City employment	100 percent to VEBA

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

The City of Red Wing ("Employer") and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO Local Union No. 737, Council 65 ("Union") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") to agree to amend the 2023-2024 Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA").

WHEREAS, the Union represents the Employer's Public Works employees;

WHEREAS, the current CBA entered into between the parties, effective from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2024, governs the terms and conditions of employment for the Employer's Public Work employees;

WHEREAS, the parties wish to revise the step progression for Public Works apprentices as it relates to compensation and obtaining a Commercial Driver's License; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree that a change to the step progression language is necessary for the success of the program.

NOW THEREFORE, Employer and the Union agree as follows:

1. The parties agree that the current language in Appendix A and Appendix B of the CBA will be revised to reflect the following changes (the red underlining represents new language):

Public Works Apprentice Program: New employees are placed on Step 1-3 depending on previous experience and qualifications. Employees hired after October 16, 2023, move through steps every three months and must obtain a Commercial Learners Permit to progress more than three steps. An employee cannot move more than six steps without having obtained a Commercial Driver's License. Upon completion of the 18-month period, obtaining an unrestricted Class A Interstate CDL, and having completed the basic knowledge checklist developed by Public Works Management, an apprentice will then automatically be moved into a Maintenance I position and be assigned to the Solid Waste Campus.

2. This MOU does not establish any precedent or practice, and neither party may present or rely on this MOU as establishing any precedent or practice. This MOU reflects the entire agreement between the parties regarding the modification of Appendices A and B of the CBA. This MOU controls to the extent that it conflicts with the CBA. No changes in this MOU are valid unless they are in writing and signed by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this MOU on the dates shown by their signatures. This MOU will not become effective unless and until it is approved by the Red Wing City Council and is executed by both parties.

		FOR THE EMPLOYER:
		City of Red Wing
Date:	9-25.23	Michael Wilson, Mayor
		Wilchael Wilson, Wayor
Date:	9-25-2023	by Drid Twenson
		Teri Swanson, City Clerk
Date:	9/25/23	by Kay Vull
		Kay Kuhlmann, City Council Administrator
		FOR THE UNION:
		AFSCME Public Works, Local 737, Council 65
Date:	9/7/23	by May - multi- Max Forrester, Labor Representative
Date:	9-7-23	by Julman Lesse Luhman, President Local 737
		Lesse Luhman, President Local 737
Date:	9-7-23	by
		Dan Herum, vice Freshuem

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT REGARDING EARNED SICK AND SAFE TIME

WHEREAS, the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO Local Union No. 737, Council 65, Public Works Union ("Union") is the exclusive representative for the employees of the Department of Public Works ("Employees") employed by the City of Red Wing ("City");

WHEREAS, the City and the Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement ("CBA") for the period of January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2024;

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2024, Minnesota's earned sick and safe time law requires employers to provide paid leave to employees who work in the state consistent with Minnesota Statutes sections 181.9445 through 181.9448;

WHEREAS, for full-time and part-time Employees, other than seasonal and temporary Employees, the City already provides leave that is more generous than the minimum amount of ESST the City is required to provide by law;

WHEREAS, Articles XVI and XVIII of the CBA outline Employees' vacation and sick leave benefits; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to document the City's and the Union's agreement with respect to earned sick and safe time in relation to the CBA.

NOW THEREFORE, the City and the Union agree as follows:

1. Earned Sick and Safe Time Required by Law.

a. Full-time Employees. Full-time Employees (those who work at least forty (40) hours per week) earn vacation leave at a rate more generous than the law governing earned sick and safe time ("ESST"), and thus, their accrual of vacation leave satisfies the City's obligation to provide them with one (1) hour of ESST leave for every thirty (30) hours worked pursuant to the ESST law. Vacation leave accrued throughout the 2024 calendar year will be available for use as ESST hours, as provided in Minnesota Statutes sections 181.9445 through 181.9448, as amended, up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours. In the event that a new CBA is not ratification, vacation leave accrued in 2025 will be available for use as ESST hours, as provided in Minnesota Statutes sections 181.9445 through 181.9448, as amended, up to a maximum of eighty (80) hours.

b. Part-Time Employees Who Qualify for Sick Leave Pursuant to the CBA. For part-time Employees who qualify for sick leave pursuant to the CBA, beginning on January 1, 2024, one (1) hour for every thirty (30) hours of sick leave that they earn will be considered ESST hours, up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours for 2024. The remainder of the sick leave hours that they earn will be placed in their regular sick leave bank.

ESST hours not used by part-time Employees before January 1 will carry over for use into the next calendar year. ESST hours can accumulate up to a maximum of eighty (80) hours. If Employees governed by this paragraph fall below the maximum accumulation of ESST hours of eighty (80) hours and have not yet earned the minimum amount of ESST leave to which they are entitled in that calendar year, then they will begin to accumulate ESST hours again.

c. Casual and Temporary Employees. For casual and temporary Employees who qualify for ESST hours (they work at least eighty (80) hours in a calendar year) and do not currently qualify for sick leave under the CBA or City policy, beginning on January 1, 2024, they will accumulate ESST hours at the rate of one (1) hour for every thirty (30) hours worked up to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours in a calendar year.

ESST hours not used by casual and temporary Employees before January 1 will carry over for use into the next calendar year. ESST hours can accumulate up to a maximum of eighty (80) hours. If Employees governed by this paragraph fall below the maximum accumulation of ESST hours of eighty (80) hours and have not yet earned the minimum amount of ESST leave to which they are entitled in that calendar year, then they will begin to accumulate ESST hours again. ESST hours do not have any cash value and will not be paid out when a casual or temporary employee's employment ends.

- d. **Use of ESST.** Leave hours available for use as ESST as set forth in this MOA may be used for any ESST-qualifying reason outlined in Minnesota Statutes section 181.9447, as amended.
- e. Use of Accumulated Sick Leave in Lieu of Vacation Leave for ESST. In lieu of using vacation hours for ESST leave, during 2024, an Employee may elect to use up to forty-eight (48) hours of their accumulated sick leave as ESST leave. In 2025, an Employee may elect to use up to eighty (80) hours of their accumulated sick leave as ESST leave.

- f. **Year measurement.** The year the City uses to measure ESST compliance will run from January 1 to December 31.
- 2. Notice for Use of ESST. If the need for ESST use is foreseeable, an Employee must provide written notice to their immediate supervisor of the intent to use ESST at least seven days in advance. If an Employee's need for use of ESST hours is unforeseeable, an Employee must contact their immediate supervisor by telephone as soon as practicable.

An Employee is responsible for notifying their immediate supervisor of which leave bank they want the ESST hours charged to, meaning that an Employee can designate whether the ESST hours come out of their accumulated sick leave bank or their accumulated vacation bank.

- 3. Use of Non-ESST Sick Leave. The City will only provide ESST-designated leave to the minimum extent required by law. An Employee may only use sick leave that is not available for use as ESST under this MOA as follows: (1) for absences as allowed by Article XVIII of the CBA, Sections 18.3(A) (D) and Section 18.8; and (2) for absences as allowed by Article XIX in the CBA.
- **4. Duration.** This Agreement will remain in effect for the duration of the CBA and will automatically sunset when a successor agreement to the CBA is ratified by both parties.

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY, AND MUNCIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO LOCAL UNION NO. 737, COUNCIL 65 – PUBLIC WORKS UNION

Date: 5/10/2024 by Max Forrester, Labor Representative

Date: 5/10/2024 by Just Luman

Jesse Bahman, President Local 737

CITY OF RED WING

by Max Forrester, Labor Representative

Date: 5/28/24 by Kay Callmann, Council Administrator

Date: 5-28-2024 by Swanson, City Clerk

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT: PUBLIC WORKS

The City of Red Wing ("City") and the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO Local Union No. 737, Council 65 ("Union") hereby enter into this Memorandum of Agreement ("MOA") to agree to revisions to the 2023-2024 Collective Bargaining Agreement ("CBA") between the parties.

WHEREAS, the Union represents public works personnel ("Employees") employed by the City;

WHEREAS, the current CBA entered into between the parties, effective from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2024, governs the terms and conditions of employment for Employees;

WHEREAS, the City recently completed a pay study on the compensation of City employees;

WHEREAS, as a result of the pay study, the City Council adopted a new pay plan on May 28, 2024; and

WHEREAS, due to the adoption of the new pay plan, the City and Union agree to revise the 2024 pay table in the CBA effective July 1, 2024.

NOW THEREFORE, the City and the Union agree as follows:

- 1. The Pay Table for 2024 in the CBA is replaced with the attached Exhibit A, effective July 1, 2024.
- 2. The parties agree that each individual Employee will be placed on the new Pay Table in accordance with Exhibit B.
- 3. The parties agree that each individual Employee will be placed on the new Grade and Step in accordance with Exhibit C.
- 4. This MOA does not establish any precedent or practice, and neither party may present or rely on this MOA as establishing any precedent or practice. This MOA reflects the entire agreement between the parties regarding the modification of the 2024 Pay Table in the CBA. This MOA controls to the extent that it conflicts with the CBA. No changes in this MOA are valid unless they are in writing and signed by both parties.

Eric Anderson, Vice-President

Exhibit A - Pay Plan July 2024

	Hourly Min				Midpoint			1	Hourly Max
Grade	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
1	\$15.66	\$16.25	\$16.86	\$17.49	\$18.15	\$18.83	\$19.54	\$20.27	\$21.03
2	\$18.33	\$19.01	\$19.73	\$20.47	\$21.23	\$22.03	\$22.86	\$23.71	\$24.60
3	\$19.79	\$20.54	\$21.31	\$22.10	\$22.93	\$23.79	\$24.69	\$25.61	\$26.57
4	\$21.38	\$22.18	\$23.01	\$23.87	\$24.77	\$25.70	\$26.66	\$27.66	\$28.70
5	\$23.73	\$24.62	\$25.54	\$26.50	\$27.49	\$28.52	\$29.59	\$30.70	\$31.85
6	\$24.91	\$25.85	\$26.82	\$27.82	\$28.87	\$29.95	\$31.07	\$32.24	\$33.45
7	\$26.16	\$27.14	\$28.16	\$29.21	\$30.31	\$31.45	\$32.63	\$33.85	\$35.12
8	\$29.04	\$30.13	\$31.26	\$32.43	\$33.64	\$34.91	\$36.21	\$37.57	\$38.98
9	\$32.23	\$33.44	\$34.69	\$36.00	\$37.35	\$38.75	\$40.20	\$41.71	\$43.27
10	\$34.81	\$36.12	\$37.47	\$38.87	\$40.33	\$41.85	\$43.41	\$45.04	\$46.73
11	\$37.59	\$39.00	\$40.47	\$41.98	\$43.56	\$45.19	\$46.89	\$48.65	\$50.47
12	\$39.47	\$40.95	\$42.49	\$44.08	\$45.74	\$47.45	\$49.23	\$51.08	\$52.99
13	\$41.45	\$43.00	\$44.62	\$46.29	\$48.02	\$49.82	\$51.69	\$53.63	\$55.64
14	\$43.52	\$45.15	\$46.85	\$48.60	\$50.43	\$52.32	\$54.28	\$56.31	\$58.43
15	\$45.70	\$47.41	\$49.19	\$51.03	\$52.95	\$54.93	\$56.99	\$59.13	\$61.35
16	\$47.98	\$49.78	\$51.65	\$53.58	\$55.59	\$57.68	\$59.84	\$62.09	\$64.41
17	\$50.38	\$52.27	\$54.23	\$56.26	\$58.37	\$60.56	\$62.83	\$65.19	\$67.63
18	\$52.90	\$54.88	\$56.94	\$59.08	\$61.29	\$63.59	\$65.98	\$68.45	\$71.02
19	\$55.54	\$57.63	\$59.79	\$62.03	\$64.36	\$66.77	\$69.27	\$71.87	\$74.57
20	\$58.32	\$60.51	\$62.78	\$65.13	\$67.57	\$70.11	\$72.74	\$75.47	\$78.30
21	\$62.99	\$65.35	\$67.80	\$70.34	\$72.98	\$75.72	\$78.56	\$81.50	\$84.56
22	\$70.55	\$73.19	\$75.94	\$78.78	\$81.74	\$84.80	\$87.98	\$91.28	\$94.71

Exhibit B-2024 Pay Table Updated (Effective 7/1/24)

Start 6 month 1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year 6 year 7 year

Position	New Grade	Safe Score Points	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9
Public Service Worker	4	110	\$21.38	\$22.18	\$23.01						
Maintenance- Urban Landscape, Maintenance- Buildings & Grounds	5	130	\$23.73	\$24.62	\$25.54	\$26.50	\$27.49	\$28.52	\$29.59	\$30.70	\$31.85
Apprentice Assistant Operator	5	140	\$23.73	\$24.62	\$25.54	\$26.50	\$27.49	\$28.52	\$29.59	\$30.70	\$31.85
Maintenance- Public Services, Maintenance- Waste Campus	5	140	\$23.73	\$24.62	\$25.54	\$26.50	\$27.49	\$28.52	\$29.59	\$30.70	\$31.85
Maintenance- Infrastructure Asset Locator	6	145	\$24.91	\$25.85	\$26.82	\$27.82	\$28.87	\$29.95	\$31.07	\$32.24	\$33.45
Fleet & Supply Controller	7	170	\$26.16	\$27.14	\$28.16	\$29.21	\$30.31	\$31.45	\$32.63	\$33.85	\$35.12
Facility Repair Technician, FEFC Maintenance Operator	7	180	\$26.16	\$27.14	\$28.16	\$29.21	\$30.31	\$31.45	\$32.63	\$33.85	\$35.12
Maintenance Lead	8	205	\$29.04	\$30.13	\$31.26	\$32.43	\$33.64	\$34.91	\$36.21	\$37.57	\$38.98
Mechanic	8	210	\$29.04	\$30.13	\$31.26	\$32.43	\$33.64	\$34.91	\$36.21	\$37.57	\$38.98
Operations Foreman- Streets, Operations Foreman- MRF	8	213	\$29.04	\$30.13	\$31.26	\$32.43	\$33.64	\$34.91	\$36.21	\$37.57	\$38.98
Facilities Maintenance HVAC	9	215	\$32.23	\$33.44	\$34.69	\$36.00	\$37.35	\$38.75	\$40.20	\$41.71	\$43.27
Operations Foreman- Trades	9	220	\$32.23	\$33.44	\$34.69	\$36.00	\$37.35	\$38.75	\$40.20	\$41.71	\$43.27
City Plumber, Electrician	10	245	\$34.81	\$36.12	\$37.47	\$38.87	\$40.33	\$41.85	\$43.41	\$45.04	\$46.73
Chief Plant Operator- MRF	10	253	\$34.81	\$36.12	\$37.47	\$38.87	\$40.33	\$41.85	\$43.41	\$45.04	\$46.73

Unless as noted below, employees starting at Step 1 upon hire will move to Step 2 after 6 months of employment and upon completion of probationary period and will advance to Step 3 after one year in position and will move through each step annually thereafter based on time in position anniversary date.

Employees hired into Step 1 will be eligible to move to Step 2 after six months in the position. On the position anniversary date and annually thereafter, will be eligible to move to the next step.

Position	New Grade	Safe Score Points	Step 1	Step 2	Step 3	Step 4	Step 5	Step 6	Step 7	Step 8	Step 9
PW Apprentice	3	95	\$19.79	\$20.54	\$21.31	\$22.10	\$22.93	\$23.79	\$24.69	\$25.61	\$26.57

Public Works Apprentice Program: New employees are placed on Step 1. Employees hired before July 1, 2024 will slot onto the pay scale at the next highest step and will be eligible for the next step at 4 months since their previous increase. They must obtain a Commercial Learners Permit to progress more than 2 steps. An employee cannot move more than four steps without having obtained a Commercial Drivers License. Upon attaining a Class A CDL, eighteen months of employment and having completed the Apprentice Program, the employee shall then move to Step 1 in the Maintenance pay grade.

Public Service Worker: New employees who have a Class B CDL are placed on Step 1 and move through steps every six months. Upon attaining a Class A CDL within one year of employment, the employee will move to Step 1 of the Maintenance position.

Exhibit C- Public Works Employee Placement

-		1			1		-		I I				la	Tax and	learr la		This same
Department	Pay Plan	Employees in updated census	Project Title		Current Min		Current Max	Current Hourty	Current Salary		Position Date	YIP	Proposed Grade	New Step		lew Hourly Rate	Notes
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Andersen Michael R	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.97	\$51,937.60	1/3/2023	1/3/2023	1	5	3	140	\$25.54	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Anderson Eric M	Operations Foreman - Streets	B31	\$60,382.40	\$69,451.20	\$78,499.20	\$36.00	\$74,880.00	7/10/2000	3/16/2020	4	8	7	213	\$36.21	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Anderson Justin C	Front End Fuel Cleaning (FEFC) Maintenance Operator	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$29.96	\$62,316.80	11/5/2018	3/21/2022	2	7	5	180	\$30.31	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Anderson Michael D	Apprentice - Assistant Operator	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.97	\$51,937.60	11/23/2020	11/23/2020	3	5	3	140	\$25.54	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Anderson Nathan P	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.97	\$51,937.60	2/21/2023	2/21/2023	1	5	3	140	\$25.54	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Anderson Steven K	Operations Foreman - Material Recovery Facility	B31	\$60,382.40	\$69,451.20	\$78,499.20	\$37.74	\$78,499.20	3/24/2008	11/28/2016	8	8	9	213	\$38.98	-
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Arendt Jason R	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.97	\$51,937.60	4/11/2022	9/15/2022	2	5	3	140	\$25.54	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Bakke Thomas J	Maintenance - Buildings and Grounds	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	1/5/1987	1/5/1987	37	5	9	130	\$31.85	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Bartholome Peter L	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$26.38	\$54,870.40	9/14/2020	9/14/2020	4	5	4	140	\$26.50	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Berge, Jesse	Apprentice	A12	\$32,011.20	\$36,816.00	\$41,600.00	\$16.77	\$34,881.60	3/18/2024	3/18/2024	0	3	2	95	\$20.54	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Bonner Robert B	Front End Fuel Cleaning (FEFC) Maintenance Operator	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$33.87	\$70,449.60	8/13/2018	8/13/2018	6	7	9	180	\$35.12	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Clemens Jon Fredrick	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	7/16/2007	7/16/2007	17	5	9	140	\$31.85	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Costello Jordan	Apprentice	A12	\$32,011.20	\$36,816.00	\$41,600.00	\$15.39	\$32,011.20	4/1/2024	4/1/2024	0	3	1	95	\$19.79	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Craighton Joshua Allen	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	9/23/2013	9/23/2013	11	5	9	140	\$31.85	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Edguist Ryan K	Maintenance - Buildings and Grounds	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	5/28/2002	5/28/2002	22	5	9	130	\$31.85	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Enevoid Robert B	Mechanic	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$33.87	\$70,449.60	7/16/2001	7/16/2001	23	8	9	210	\$38.98	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Flaten Bradley C	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	2/5/2018	2/5/2018	5	5	8	140	\$30.70	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Hadler, Charlie	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$23.56	\$49,004.80	7/10/2024	7/10/2024	0	5	1	140	\$23.73	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Hardy Spencer J	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.26	\$50,460.80	1/3/2023	10/2/2023	1	5	2	140	\$24.62	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Heigren Kelly L	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	5/23/2005	5/23/2005	19	5	9	140	\$31.85	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Herum Daniel Paul	Facilities Repair Technician	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$33.09	\$67,184.00	12/19/2011	6/2/2014	10	7	9	180	\$35.12	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Holz Joshua G	Maintenance - Urban Landscape	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	12/28/2018	11/8/2021	3	5	8	130	\$30.70	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Klein Richard M	Maintenance - Infrastructure Asset Locator	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	11/10/2014	10/11/2021	3	6	7	145	\$31.07	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Langhans William K	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.26	\$50,460.80	1/30/2023	10/16/2023	1	5	2	140	\$24.62	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Lastine Gage R	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$25.67	\$53,393.60	4/5/2021	10/2/2023	1	5	4	140	\$26.50	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Luhman Jesse J	Fleet and Supply Controller	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	9/10/2007	9/10/2007	17	7	9	170	\$35.12	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Mandelkow Justin Kyle	Chief Plant Operator - Material Recovery Facility	B32	\$67,350.40	\$77,459.20	\$87,547.20	\$38.20	\$79,456.00	12/21/2015	3/21/2022	2	10	4	253	\$38.87	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Meacham Mark L	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	8/6/2007	8/6/2007	17	5	9	140	\$31.85	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Mechura Spencer	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$23.56	\$49,004.80	7/1/2024	7/1/2024	0	5	1	140	\$23.73	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Moritz Matthew D	Operations Foreman - Trades	B32	\$67,350.40	\$77,459.20	\$87,547.20	\$34.32	\$71,385.60	1/3/2000	8/1/2022	2	9	3	220	\$34.69	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Nelson, Curtis M	Maintenance - Buildings and Grounds	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	12/27/2011	12/27/2011	13	5	9	130	\$31.85	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Peterson Jake David	Maintenance - Solid Waste	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$24.97	\$51,937.60	5/2/2022	9/15/2022	2	5	3	140	\$25.54	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Powers Shawn C	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	6/27/2001	6/27/2001	23	5	9	140	\$31.85	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Ryan Roger F	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	10/5/2009	10/5/2009	15	5	9	140	\$31.85	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Schoeder Mark S	City Plumber	B25	\$67,350.40	\$77,459.20	\$87,547.20	\$42.09	\$87,547.20	12/8/2014	12/8/2014	10	10	9	245	\$46.73	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Schroeder Joseph	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	10/14/2014	10/14/2014	10	5	9	140	\$31.85	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Schutz Noah L	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48.984.00	\$56,305,60	\$63,668.80	\$24.26	\$50,460.80	12/19/2022	10/2/2023	1	5	2	140	\$24.62	
SOLIDWA	AFSCME Public Works/General	Shafer Anthony P	Maintenance - Waste Campus	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	3/26/2018	3/26/2018	6	5	8	140	\$30.70	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Simanski Greg R	Maintenance Lead	B31	\$60,382.40	\$69,451.20	\$78,499.20	\$37.74	\$78,499.20	12/19/1983	5/24/1992	32	8	9	205	\$38.98	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Smith Nicholas	Mechanic	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$33.09	\$68.827.20	6/8/2020	6/8/2020	4	8	5	210	\$33.64	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Stehr Alexander T	Mechanic	B23	\$54,184.00	\$62,316.80	\$70,428.80	\$28.39	\$59,051.20	8/9/2021	8/9/2021	2	8	2	210	\$30.13	
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Stemmann Cory D	Maintenance - Buildings and Grounds	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305,60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	3/24/2014	3/24/2014	10	5	9	130	\$31.85	
PUBLICSE	AFSCME Public Works/General	Strusz Anthony L	Maintenance - Public Services	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	\$30.61	\$63,668.80	12/15/2003	12/15/2003	21	5	9	140	\$31.85	1
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	VACANT	Maintenance - Buildings and Grounds	B22	\$48,984.00	\$56,305.60	\$63,668.80	1	133,500.00				5		130		1
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	VACANT	Facilities Maintenance HVAC	B25	\$67,350.40	\$77,459.20	\$87,547.20						9	1	215		1
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Westerberg Michael D	Maintenance - Urban Landscape	B23	\$48.984.00	\$56,305,60	\$63,668.80	\$27.79	\$57.803.20	3/30/2020	3/30/2020	4	5	6	130	\$28.52	1
BLDG/GR	AFSCME Public Works/General	Zorn Johan	Apprentice	A12	\$32.011.20	\$36.816.00	\$41,600.00	\$15.39	\$32.011.20	4/2/2024	4/2/2024	0	3	1	95	\$19.79	
DEDOIGH	In John Works/General	LEGIT SOSIBIT	Inphretrice	_ AIZ	\$32,011.20	1 430,010.00	\$41,000.00	910.00	402,011.20	412/2024	~ 2/2024				1 001	420170	

ß.